

This project is co-financed by the European Union and the Republic of Turkiye

Technical Assistance for "A Smart Network for Technology Transfer and Commercialisation with Funnel Model (SMARTNET)"

> Contract No: TR14C2.2.05-04/001 EUROPEAID/140284/IH/SER/TR

SOFTWARE REQUIREMENT SPECIFICATIONS (SRS) AND DATABASE DESIGN DOCUMENT (DDD)

26.06.2023













## Technical Assistance for "A Smart Network for Technology Transfer and Commercialisation with Funnel Model (SMARTNET)"

Contract No: TR14C2.2.05-04/001 EUROPEAID/140284/IH/SER/TR

SOFTWARE REQUIREMENT SPECIFICATIONS (SRS) AND DATABASE DESIGN DOCUMENT (DDD)

26.06.2023

#### **Document Control and Approval Sheet**

Project Name	Technical Assistance for "A Smart Network for Technology Transfer and Commercialisation with Funnel Model (SMARTNET)"
Contract Number	TR14C2.2.05-04/001
Reference Number	EUROPEAID/140284/IH/SER/TR
End Recipient of Assistance	Yıldız Technical University
Contract Signed	08.03.2022
Commencement Date	25.05.2022
Duration	36 Months
Prepared By	Technical Assistance Team
Date of Document	26.06.2023 (Please See Revision Information Below)
Contractor	SwanLeuco Danışmanlık AŞ Kiliçdede Mah. Kastamonu Sok. No:6 11/54 55060 İlkadım Samsun 0362 503 55 64 <u>okan.gumus@swanleuco.com</u>

#### **Revision Information**

Revision	Notes and Changes	
1.1	Section on Licensing Requirements added per Request of ERA,	
	Updated Module Workflows, Usage Scenarios and Database Design	
	Sections to match the final state of the deployed SMARTNET Platform.	
1.0	Initial Revision	
	Revision 1.1 1.0	

#### DISCLAIMER

This document has been produced with the technical assistance of the European Union under Technical Assistance for "A Smart Network for Technology Transfer and Commercialisation with Funnel Model (SMARTNET)" Project, Türkiye. Service Contract Number: "EUROPEAID/140284/IH/SER/TR".

The contents of this publication are the sole responsibility of SwanLeuco in consortium with Evoluxer, Asturex, RRDA, StartUp Division, Inycon and can in no way taken as the view of the European Union and the Ministry of Industry and Technology of the Republic of Türkiye.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST of	ABBREVIATIONS	7
1.	INTRODUCTION	8
2.	OUR AGILE DEVELOPMENT METHODOLOGY AND JIRA	9
3.	SYSTEM DESIGN: THE DEVELOPMENT INFRASTRUCTURE	10
3.1	THE LANDSCAPE: DEVELOPMENT LANGUAGE AND ENVIRON MENT	10
3.2	THE DATABASE PLATFORM	11
3.3	THE VERSIONING PLATFORM	12
4.	SYSTEM DESIGN: SYSTEM ARCHITECTURE	12
5.	DEVELOP MENT ENVIRONMENT AND EQUIPMENT	14
5.1	SERV ERS AND LICENSING	16
6.	SMARTNET MODULES	19
6.1	MODULE PURPOSE	19
6.2	TARGET MASS	19
6.3	BUSINESS DEFINITION REQUIREMENTS	19
6.4	DEFINITIONS	20
6.5	USAGE SCENARIOS	21
7.	DATA BASE DESIGN	56

## TABLE OF FIGURES

Figure 1 - Sample SMARTNET JIRA Issue Page	9
Figure 2 - SMARTNET Backlog in JIRA	10
Figure 3 - Pillars of the SMARTNET HNB Core Frame work	13
Figure 4 - System Architecture	16
Figure 5 - Entrepreneur Registration Scheme	22
Figure 6 - Entrepreneur Registration Mock-up Drawing	22
Figure 7 - User Activation Chart	23
Figure 8 - User Activation Mail Mock up Drawing	23
Figure 9 - Entrepreneur Login-Logout Diagram	24
Figure 10 - Entrepreneur Input-Output mock-up Drawing	24
Figure 11 - Entrepreneur Password Change/Renewal Scheme	25
Figure 12 - Entrepreneur Password Change Mock-up Drawing	25
Figure 13 - Entrepreneur Password Renewal Scheme	26
Figure 14 - Entrepreneur Password Reset Mock up Drawing	26
Figure 15 - Entrepreneur Profile Update Chart	27
Figure 16 - Entrepreneur Profile Update Mock-up Drawing	27
Figure 17 - User Assistance Diagram	28
Figure 18 - User Help Mock-up Drawing	28
Figure 19 - Mentor Registration Mock-up Drawing	29
Figure 20 - User Groups Mock-up Drawing	29
Figure 21 - Listing Page Mock-up Drawing	30
Figure 22 - Mentor Evaluation Form Mock-up Drawing	31
Figure 23 - Mentor List Mock-up Drawing	31
Figure 24 - Filled Mentor Evaluation Form Mock-up Drawing	32
Figure 25 - Mentor Applications Information Mail Mock-up Drawing	32
Figure 26 - Mentor Profile Completion Confirmation Mock-up Drawing	33
Figure 27 - Mentor List Mock-up Drawing	33
Figure 28 - Sending a Request to Mentor Screen Mock-up Drawing	34
Figure 29 - Mentor Requests Mock-up Drawing	34
Figure 30 - Mentor Evaluation Mock-up Drawing	35
Figure 31 - Entrepreneur Requests Mock-up Drawing	35
Figure 32 - Approve/Reject Entrepreneur Mock-up Drawing	36
Figure 33 - Entrepreneur Evaluation Screen Mock-up Drawing	36
Figure 34 - Delete Screen Mock-up Drawing	37

Figure 35 - Investor Invitation - Users Screen Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 36 - Investor Invitation Screen Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 37 - Investor Invitation Mail Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 38 - Investor Information Form Personal Information Tab Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 39 - Investor Information Form Field Information Tab Mock-up Drawing	40
Figure 40 - Investor List Mock-up Drawing	40
Figure 41 - Investor Request Submission Mock-up Drawing	41
Figure 42 - Entrepreneur Notification Mail to the Investor Mock-up Drawing	41
Figure 43 - Investors Entrepreneurs List Screen Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 44 - Investors viewing Entrepreneur Request Mock-up Drawing	42
Figure 45 - Investors Entrepreneur Request Evaluation Mock Up Drawing	43
Figure 46 - My Investor Requests Screen Mock-up Drawing	43
Figure 47 - Entrepreneur Message Screen Mock-up Drawing	44
Figure 48 - Entrepreneur Information Mail Mock-up Drawing	44
Figure 49 - Investors view All Entrepreneurs Mock-up Drawing	45
Figure 50 - Admin List of Entrepreneur-Investor Matchmaking Mock-up Drawing	46
Figure 51 - Administrators viewing the Entrepreneur Request to the Investor Mock-up Drawing	46
Figure 52 - Institution List Menu Placement	46
Figure 53 - IPR Module List of Beneficiary Institutions Mock-up Drawing	47
Figure 54 - IPR Module Beneficiary Institution Data Entry Screen Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 55 - IPR Module Beneficiary Institution Users List Mock-up Drawing	48
Figure 56 – IPR Module User Invitation Mail Mock-up Drawing	48
Figure 57 - IPR Module Users List Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 58 - IPR Module Users Menu Layout Mock-up Drawing	49
Figure 59 - IPR Beneficiary Institution Profile Entry Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 60 - Information of the Beneficiary Institution of IPR Module Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 61 - Best Practises List Mock-up Drawing	51
Figure 62 - Best Practises New Entry Mock-up Drawing	52
Figure 63 - Brand Portfolio List Mock-up Drawing	
Figure 64 - Adding a Brand Portfolio Mock-up Drawing	53
Figure 65 - Design Portfolio List Mock-up Drawing	53
Figure 66 - Adding a Design Portfolio Item Mock-up Drawing	54
Figure 67 - Patent/Utility Model Portfolio List Mock-up Drawing	54
Figure 68 - Adding a Patent/Utility Model Portfolio Item Mock-up Drawing	55

## LIST of ABBREVIATIONS

Artificial Intelligence
Application Programming Interface
Contracting Authority
Competitiveness and Innovation Sector Operational Programme
Decision Support
End Recipient of Assistance (Beneficiary)
Delegation of the European Union to Türkiye
Gebze Technical University
Hasan Kalyoncu University
Information and Communication Technologies
Intellectual Property
Information Technologies
Istanbul Technical University
Key Expert
Management Information System
Machine Learning
Ministry of Industry and Technology Directorate of EU Financial Programmes
Operation Coordination Unit
Operation Coordination Unit Director
Operating Structure
Organized Industrial Zone
Quality Assurance
Research and Development
Regional Competitiveness Operational Programme
Small and Medium Sized Enterprise
Technical Assistance
Technical Assistance Team
Test Cases Document
Technology Development Zone
Training Needs Assessment
Terms of Reference
Technology Readiness Level
Test Specifications / Test Specialist
Technology Transfer Intermediary
Technology Transfer Office
Yıldız Technical University
World Intellectual Property Organisation

## 1. INTRODUCTION

Under Component I of the A Smart Network for Technology Transfer and Commercialisation with Funnel Model (SMARTNET) project, one of the primary activities is Activity 1. Establishment of TTI Network and Development of Institutional Infrastructure which aims to establish and operationalize SMARTNET by delivering training, mentoring/consulting and fundraising services to the target groups for supporting them to commercialize their technology-oriented business ideas.

Activity A.1.1. Development of TTI Network Software Platform focuses on the design, development, and operationalisation of the SMARTNET Artificial Intelligence Based TTI Network Software Platform (SMARTNET Platform) which consist of two components the MIS and the Web Portal to be interconnected with each other and developed under the detailed methodology provided in the Technical Proposal.

The **Smartnet MIS Platform**; is a web-based Management Information System (MIS) which will act as commercialisation automation software and a management decision support system that would coordinate the transfer of technology and commercialisation activities and provide mutual information flow in the network constituted by stakeholder TTIs, with the following identified list of developed modules:

- Module 1 Entrepreneurs management
- Module 2 Mentors management
- Module 3 Investors management
- Module 4 Intellectual Property (IP) management
- Module 5 Integration web services
- Module 6 Artificial intelligence and decision support
- Module 7 Standard and custom reporting
- Module 8 System management and administration

as well as two auxillary modules:

- Module 9 Web Portal (Content Management System)
- Module 10 e-Learning Platform (ME-Learning)

The purpose of this document is to present the **Software Requirement Specification (SRS)** forming the basis of the **user requirements** and **system specifications** as were analysed starting with the inception phase until the time of the submission of this document to the ERA and MoIT and provides a comprehensive description of the intended purpose and environment for the **Smartnet MIS Platform** that was developed. The Software Requirements Specifications intends to fully describe what the **Smartnet MIS platform** will do and how it will be expected to perform.

This document also wholly incorporates the **Software Design Descriptions (SDD)** which provides textual description of the application design supported by UML diagrams, wireframes and use-cases, thereby mapping the logical data model to the target database management system with consideration to the system's performance requirements. The Database Design presented is intended to convert logical or conceptual data constructs to physical storage constructs (e.g., tables, files) of the target Database Management System (DBMS).

## 2. OUR AGILE DEVELOPMENT METHODOLOGY AND JIRA

The specifications, user requirements, design elements, use-cases and business analysis collected and presented in this document will form the basis of our **user stories** and **epics** in our Agile methodology which will then subsequently translated into **technical tasks** for implementation by the development team. The specifications presented in this document has formed the first stories that will be included into our **product backlog**, one of the basic artefacts of our Agile process, as defined into our Technical Proposal and our Inception Report.

This document is the starting point of the agile sofware development and not the result of it. It will be transformed into the **backlog** and **sprints** as we described them in the Technical Proposal and the Inception Report. The documentation of these sprints and the monitoring of the project will take place in **Jira**, the industry standard issue and project tracking software from Atlassian, that has been created for the project and available at <u>https://smartnetpro.atlassian.net/browse/SN</u>.



Figure 1 - Sample SMARTNET JIRA Issue Page

Our development planning for the Smartnet MIS, as presented in the Inception Report, also provided us with flexibility in which the TAT along with the ERA, it's technical advisors as well as representatives from the Contracting Authority to work and collaborate in parallel starting from the rather "generic modules" (such as the User Registration, User Management or Content Management functionalities) to more "complex modules" and functionalities as requested by the ToR to be implemented the system, such as the Entrepreneur Management, Mentor Management, Call Management, Data Collection methodologies to feed the AI engine and decision support tools, etc.

🗰 🔷 Jira Software 🛛 Your	work v Projects v Filters v Dashboards v People v Apps v Create	Q. Search 🛷 🚱 🌣 🌍
SmartNET Software project	Projects / SmartNET Backlog	
Roadmap	Q. (2) (20) (20) (20) (20) (20) (20) (20)	Len Insights
Board	✓ SN Spint 6 12 Jan – 20 Jan (16 issues)	1 1 0 Complete sprint ····
Ssues Issues	SN-72 GIRIŞ EKRANI / KAVIT SÜRECİ	= TEST-UAT 🗸 🤫
Project pages	SN-83 Sistem parametrelerine css adinda alan ekleyelim.	= TEST-UAT 🗸 🍈
Checklist	SN-82 lçerik Yönetimi menüsünün silinmesi	= TEST-UAT - 💌
Add shortcut	SN-77 GIRIŞIMCİ PROFILI DÜZENLEMELER	= TEST-UAT 🗸 🌘
Project settings	SN-70 Liste sayfalarında kolonların genişliğini optimize edelim.	= TEST-UAT 🗸
	SN-74 WEB YÖNETIMI – IÇERİK LİSTESİ	= TEST-UAT 🗸 💷
	SN-73 WEB YÖNETIMI – SLIDER LİSTESİ	= TEST-UAT 🗸 🕫
	SN-80 Anasayfadaki Resimli panelin sadeleştirilmesi	= TEST-UAT 🗸 👰
	SN-71 Girişimci formunda hata alınan alanı belirtmek	= TEST-UAT 🗸 🌘
	🖸 SN-79 Rakip analizi butonu 💉 🕂 Epic	= TEST-UAT V 🌘 …
	SN-75 WEB YÖNETİMİ – MENÜ LİSTESİ	= TEST-UAT 🗸 🐽
	SN-76 WEB YÖNETIMI – HABER/DUYURU LISTESI	= TEST-UAT V 💌
	SN-85 Profilmi Göster Butonu	TEST-UAT 🗸 🌘
	SN-86 Linkbox	= TEST-UAT 🖌 🔫
	SN-87 Girişim bilgi formunda açıklamalarda kayma	= TEST-UAT 🗸 🕫
	SN-78 SMARTNET,GLOBAL ALTINA KONUŞLANDIRMA	— то во ~ 🅼
	+ Create issue	
You're in a team-managed project	✓ SN Sprint 5  # Add dates (8 issues)	1 7 O Start sprint ····
	SN-25 Menü Haritası ve İçerik Şablonunun Belirlenmesi CONTENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM	

Figure 2 - SMARTNET Backlog in JIRA

## 3. SYSTEM DESIGN: THE DEVELOPMENT INFRASTRUCTURE

The system design starts with the identification of the development infrastructure and the software framework. The development infrastructure will form operational backbone of the system. The development infrastructure for the Smartnet MIS will consist of developed in a way to form both the operation of the system and the operational backbone of other applications. Basically, the development infrastructure will consist of three sub-components.

## 3.1 THE LANDSCAPE: DEVELOPMENT LANGUAGE AND ENVIRONMENT

We will be using the **C# language** and the **ASP.NET Core Framework** to develop all the parts of the Smartnet MIS Platform web application.

**C#** is a general-purpose, multi-paradigm programming language encompassing static typing, strong typing, lexically scoped, imperative, declarative, functional, generic, object-oriented (class-based), and component-oriented programming disciplines

**ASP.NET** is a popular web-development framework for building web apps on the .NET platform.

**ASP.NET Core** is the <u>open-source</u> version of ASP.NET, that runs on macOS, Linux, and Windows which was first released in 2016 thru a re-design of earlier Windows-only versions of ASP.NET.

As integrated development environment, we will be using **Visual Studio 2022** for the MIS platform and **Visual Studio Code** to support Phyton and AI oriented modules.



**Microsoft Visual Studio** is an integrated development environment (IDE) from Microsoft. It is used to develop computer programs, as well as websites, web apps, web services and mobile apps particularly using C, C++, C# and other supported languages.

Visual Studio is an industry-standard tool to produce both native and managed code employing modern technologies and targeting software development platforms such as Windows, Web, Embedded Devices and mobile.

**Visual Studio Code** is a free, lightweight and open-source source-code editor made by Microsoft for Windows, Linux and macOS that comes with built-in support for JavaScript, TypeScript and Node.js and has a rich ecosystem of extensions for other languages and runtimes (such as C++, C#, Java, Python, PHP, Go, .NET).

## 3.2 THE DATABASE PLATFORM

For the development of Smartnet MIS Platform, we will be employing **Microsoft SQL Server** as the database platform.



*Microsoft SQL Server* is a relational database management system developed by Microsoft. As a database server, it has the primary function of storing and retrieving data as requested by software applications - which may run either on the same server or on another server across a network or the internet.

While many options such as MySQL or PostgreSQL exists, Microsoft SQL Server is the industry-standard database solution to be employed with ASP.NET and ASP.NET Core applications, particularly when employing **Entity Framework (EF)** for data access.

Should the need arise for a higher performance and responsiveness, we will be we will be using **Redis** for caching and **RabbitMQ** for the data transfer bus.

![](_page_10_Picture_11.jpeg)

**Redis** is an open source, in-memory data structure store used as a database, cache, message broker, and streaming engine that provides data structures such as strings, hashes, lists, sets, bitmaps, and streams with built-in replication, scripting, transactions, and different levels of on-disk persistence.

**RabbitMQ** is an open-source message-broker software (also called message-oriented middleware) that originally implemented the Advanced Message Queuing Protocol (AMQP) and has since been extended with a plug-in architecture to support Streaming Text Oriented Messaging Protocol (STOMP), MQ Telemetry Transport (MQTT), and other protocols.

## 3.3 THE VERSIONING PLATFORM

For the development of Smartnet MIS Platform, we will be using **Git** as the versioning and source code control system.

![](_page_11_Picture_2.jpeg)

**Git** is an open-source, distributed version-control system for tracking changes in any set of files from small to very large projects with speed and efficiency. Originally designed in 2005 by **Linus Torvalds** for development of the **Linux** kernel, it is now an industry-standard for coordinating work among programmers cooperating on source code during software development.

## 4. SYSTEM DESIGN: SYSTEM ARCHITECTURE

Smartnet MIS will be designed in an expandable, modular manner. The system architecture will implement the **Model-View-Controller (MVC)**. MVC is an architectural pattern that separates an application into three main logical components: the model, the view, and the controller. Each of these components are built to handle specific development aspects of an application. MVC is one of the most frequently used, industry-standards, web development frameworks used to create scalable and extensible projects.

	Model	The Model component corresponds to all the data-related logic that the user works with. This can represent either the data that is being transferred between the View and Controller components or any other business logic-related data.
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	View	The View component is used for all the UI logic of the application.
÷	Controller	Controllers act as an interface between Model and View components to process all the business logic and incoming requests, manipulate data using the Model component and interact with the Views to render the final output.

In terms of our architectural approach, the Smartnet MIS will use a multi-layered architecture consisting of six horizontal layers in this project. These layers will be view (presentation), business logic, data logic, models, intersecting, and service layers. A brief description of these layers is provided below:

	View	GUI-based applications for accessing end users.
- PROP	Business Logic	Business use cases from an application standpoint.
	Data Logic	Layers that we are working on data on.
	Models	Layers that contain the database models in the application.

Intersecting References	Intersecting References are not business logic codes; instead, they are utility layer codes commonly used in distributed applications and should be kept separate from business logic.
Service	Between the business logic and each type of presentation layer, there is a service layer that helps the system management operations.

SMARTNET Software Platform will be based on an **n-tier Application Architecture**. The n-tier application architecture provides a model by which developers can build flexible and reusable applications. Therefore, pieces of software with different tasks operate separately from each other. By dividing an application into layers, developers gain the ability to change or add a specific layer instead of reworking the entire application.

As TAT, we are confident that the following features of the HNB Core Framework, which includes many libraries and software development approaches, have a guiding and facilitating effect on the development and success of the SMARTNET Platform.

The framework features 6 key features and capabilities that has proven use for software development for the R&D and commercialization ecosystem:

![](_page_12_Figure_4.jpeg)

Figure 3 - Pillars of the SMARTNET HNB Core Framework

	Reporting	It offers the possibility of making up-to-date, instant reporting with SQL query for all data in the system. These reports can be exported in word, excel and pdf formats.
	Logging	Any problems experienced by the user or by the system, transactions such as data updates are stored as logs.
	Authorisation	The system shows different functionality for many different user roles. There is an authorisation mechanism to provide this functionality and ensure security.
	Web API	There is a web API infrastructure that can transfer the data in the system using JSON for export if requested.
Dy Ma	Dynamic Table Management	By eliminating the problem of constantly adding columns to the database, it provides the opportunity to hold the columns and data dynamically.
	Caching	For data in the system, the caching system is used to avoid the need for reloading every time.
	Authorisation Web API Dynamic Table Management Caching	<ul> <li>Any problems experienced by the user or by the system, transaction such as data updates are stored as logs.</li> <li>The system shows different functionality for many different user roles. There is an authorisation mechanism to provide this functionality and ensure security.</li> <li>There is a web API infrastructure that can transfer the data in the system using JSON for export if requested.</li> <li>By eliminating the problem of constantly adding columns to the database, it provides the opportunity to hold the columns and data dynamically.</li> <li>For data in the system, the caching system is used to avoid the nee for reloading every time.</li> </ul>

## 5. DEVELOPMENT ENVIRONMENT AND EQUIPMENT

The architecture of the Smartnet MIS and the well-thought-out requirement for an agile approach to the development of SW have led us to propose a development infrastructure built on the cloud-based DevOps model. This infrastructure can be invaluable for growth as it allows all our teams to work synergistically and collaboratively without the hazards and malfunctions of on-site hardware, connectivity-related technical issues, or security vulnerabilities.

In addition, the DevOps model provides a more flexible approach to testing and deploying software as part of our **Software Development Lifecycle (SDLC)**. Ideally, we can completely separate our development, deployment (quality assurance, testing), and production environments to enable better testing, avoid downtime, improve security, speed deployment, and more. However, the more sophisticated our DTAP (development, test, acceptance, and production) approach, the more costly the infrastructure can be, often adding limited value to the overall investment.

We propose 3 phases with a combined test and acceptance environment and a separate development environment.

ENVIRONMENT	DEFINITION
DEVELOPMENT	A development server used to develop and test code directly by the developer.
TEST ACCEPTANCE	Internal Testing: Both the QA team and users of the study by can be verified for SW versions will be distributed. Tester, the product to be should like

	<ul> <li>because it works sure to be for various use their status will run. discovered errors and problems, problem tracing our system through fix for to programmer's report is done.</li> <li>User Acceptance Testing (UAT): Smartnet personnel can access and use the product in real time with the same appearance as the final product. Features, dependencies, and functionality are tested here and go into production after approval.</li> </ul>
PRODUCTION	This is the final place where the finished and approved work is placed, and the main operating environment. Deployment to a production server means that everything has been tested and approved for wide use.

# In many SW development lifecycles, multiple environments are required or considered beneficial. We recommend the following environments in our development cycles:

- **GIANT** | **Development**: This environment is intended for developers. The requirements for the environment are met by the TAT development team (SOLVERA).
- **TES** | **Test**: This environment is used for testing purposes. All sprint output is deployed to this environment so that the end user can test the sprint content before production. This environment also includes the STAGING environment, which is typically used between test and production. User acceptance tests are performed in this environment. This environment was gracefully provided by the **ERA**.
- **PRO** | **Production**: The public version of the Smartnet MIS platform is deployed in this environment.

In this project, separate servers are required for the web application, web services, and database application (separate for test and production environments). The primary purpose of this approach is to distribute the load and simplify management. The distribution of the required servers can be seen in the following diagram.

![](_page_15_Figure_0.jpeg)

Figure 4 - System Architecture

## 5.1 SERVERS AND LICENSING

Our software offers stability, scalability and performance. It runs smoothly in various configurations and supports different operating systems (Windows, Linux). However, during the project inception period, to ensure sustainability of the SMARTNET Platform and provide affinity with the existing software landscape of the ERA (Yıldız Technical University), who is responsible for providing the hosting as per ToR, Windows platform and Microsoft SQL Server was chosen as the target development and deployment platforms.

#### **Licensing Requirements**

The SMARTNET Platform will run on Windows Server, Microsoft SQL Server, IIS, and .NET Framework, the general licensing requirements for these are summarised below:

#### Windows Server

Windows Server is a server operating system provided by Microsoft. Licensing for Windows Server typically requires the acquisition of server licenses, which are usually based on the number of physical

or virtual processors in use. There are different editions of Windows Server available, such as Standard, Datacenter, and Essentials, each with specific licensing terms and features.

The ERA, Yıldız Technical University (YTU) has university-wide licenses for Windows Server, allowing authorized users to deploy and utilize the operating system within the university's infrastructure.

#### Microsoft SQL Server

Microsoft SQL Server is a relational database management system (DBMS) developed by Microsoft. Similar to Windows Server, licensing for Microsoft SQL Server usually involves the acquisition of server licenses based on the number of physical or virtual processors in use, along with client access licenses (CALs) for accessing the database.

The ERA, Yıldız Technical University (YTU) has university-wide licenses for Microsoft SQL Server, enabling authorized users to deploy and use the database system within the university's environment.

#### Internet Information Services (IIS) and .NET Framework

IIS is a web server software provided by Microsoft, while .NET Framework is a software development framework for building Windows-based applications. IIS and .NET Framework are often bundled with the Windows operating system and can be used freely without additional licensing requirements.

#### Licensing for the SMARTNET Platform

According to the Turkish Law of Intellectual and Artistic Work Property Rights No: 5846; **the financial and moral rights of the software belong to the ERA**, Yıldız Technical University. In addition, the ownership of the domain name of the SMARTNET Platform also belongs to the ERA. There are no license-restricted or third-party software components used for the SMARTNET Platform.

Therefore, after the completion of the software development process:

- The software, source codes, their proper comments and documents produced will be submitted to ERA by the Contractor,
- The software codes will be open-source code and can be freely re-compiled,
- The usernames and passwords which will belong to management panels of any kind that are related to the SMARTNET Platform will be delivered to the ERA.

The following configuration uses at least two servers for the development and testing phase and a greatest of 4 servers for the production phase. Alternative configurations are also possible by combining some of the above environments into a single hardware unit or using virtual machines, always balancing cost, performance, and security.

PRESENTER	DEVELOPMENT	DEVELOPMENT TESTS	PRODUCTION
DATABASE	<b>DB1:</b> This is the server that will process the database. It may be the same as the application server, but it's usually better to keep them separate.	<b>DB1:</b> The Server can host 2 different instances of the Database: Dev and Test.	PDB: The production master Database Server will be isolated from development and testing.
APPLICATION	<b>APP1:</b> This is the server that will run the application during the development and testing phases.	APP1:Wecanreducecostsbypublishing2different instances ofthe application usingthe sameserverinfrastructure.	<b>PAPP:</b> A separate production level server for the main application.
WEB			WEB: Separate server for web application for production environment only.
LOAD BALANCING			LDS: A load balancing server may be required depending on performance requirements.
SERVERS	2 (DB1, APP1)	4	

#### 6. SMARTNET MODULES

This section covers the modules of the Smartnet MIS Platform:

#### 6.1 MODULE PURPOSE

#### Module 1 System / User Management

This module enables the overall management of the system and serves two purposes: The administration of the system, and the administration of its users.

**System Management**: Administrators can manage the internal components of the system. They can manage general platform settings and datawebsite content and receive analytical reports of the platform and each module.

**User Management**: Based on rights, administrators and admin users can create, invite, activate, lock, and manage other users, user groups, menus, and user manuals, change parameters and settings, set access policies, and more.

**Single sign-on**: The module also manages the authentication scheme so that users can seamlessly access all applications and services of our system.

**Registration**: This module provides all the necessary functions that allow entrepreneurs to register for SMARTNET services and create, their profiles. It provides each user to manage their profile data.

#### 6.2 TARGET MASS

This document is intended for the technical project managers, product managers, and developers of ERA to provide an overview of a particular module. It is a starting point. Once approved by ERA, will be transferred to our agile software development platform for further analysis and monitoring of the software development process.

#### 6.3 BUSINESS DEFINITION REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the Terms of Reference, the Smartnet MISPlatform general registry will be accessible to beneficiaries to facilitate announcements, training, events, mentoring, matching, calls, and all related services. To meet this requirement, a powerful user management and registration. Module will be needed to manage all the distinct user types, attributes, and access rights. As far as we can see, we have identified at least 6 - 7 roles.

Platform User Groups / System Roles		
System Managers (Employee)	This user has the ability to manage resources by creating access policies for platform users and defining processes for the assigned module (module manager) or the entire platform (platform manager) depending on the access policy assigned to it.	
Webmaster (Employee)	User has the ability to create, manage the data within the project, the participants, and control the progress of the application and evaluation processes.	

Mentor Evaluator	They have the authority to evaluate the users who join the system as mentors.		
Entrepreneur	These are startups and entrepreneurs who have applied for open tenders or are already part of SMARTNET and thus receive support and various services for the development and growth of their ideas, products, and companies.		
Web Portal Users	Web portal (registered) users can access pages and documents provided by the content management system for registered users.		
Administrative Unit Users	Administrative users are responsible for planning and managing marketing acceleration programs. Administrative unit users are the user group that makes decisions about entrepreneurs, mentors, investors, programs, instructors, and training.		
Educators	This is the account opened in the Smartnet system for instructors in the Education Portal. Educators can log in to the education portal using a single login function.		
Mentor (Expert)	These users are experts with proven experience in specific areas who can be assigned to one or more applicants to help them develop their ideas/products/services.		
Investors	Investors have access to business ideas, data on technological readiness, key frameworks for entrepreneurs' operations, and investment proposals from management, if applicable.		

## 6.4 DEFINITIONS

**Platform User:** Any person who registers on the platform or registers by creating their own data profile and is uniquely identified by it. In order to use the services of the platform, the user must be assigned an access policy associated with one of the following system roles.

Platform User Gro	Platform User Groups / System Roles		
System Managers (Employee)	This user has the ability to manage resources by creating access policies for platform users and defining processes for the assigned module (module manager) or the entire platform (platform manager) depending on the access policy assigned to it.		
Webmaster (Employee)	User has the ability to create, manage the data within the project, the participants, and control the progress of the application and evaluation processes.		
Mentor Evaluator	They have the authority to evaluate the users who join the system as mentors.		

Entrepreneur	These are startups and entrepreneurs who have applied for open tenders or are already part of SMARTNET and thus receive support and various services for the development and growth of their ideas, products, and companies.			
Web Portal Users	Web portal (registered) users can access pages and documents provided by the content management system for registered users.			
Administrative Unit Users	Administrative users are responsible for planning and managing marketing acceleration programs. Administrative unit users are the user group that makes decisions about entrepreneurs, mentors, investors, programs, instructors, and training.			
Educators	This is the account opened in the Smartnet system for instructors in the Education Portal. Educators can log in to the education portal using a single login function.			
Mentor (Expert)	These users are experts with proven experience in specific areas who can be assigned to one or more applicants to help them develop their ideas/products/services.			
Investors	Investors have access to business ideas, data on technological readiness, key frameworks for entrepreneurs' operations, and investment proposals from management, if applicable.			

These are the actions that users with specific roles can perform to the extent allowed by the system. Each privilege has at least one role, and each role has at least one privilege. The system does not allow roles to act outside their privileges.

## 6.5 USAGESCENARIOS

The usage scenarios under the system are provided as follows:

#### 6.5.1 Entrepreneur Registration

A new entrepreneur logs into the system.

- The information must be entered correctly during registration. It is not possible to register using someone else's phone number and e-mail address.
- The GDPR/KVKK should be accepted only once.

![](_page_21_Figure_0.jpeg)

Figure 5 - Entrepreneur Registration Scheme

	A Web Poge
~~~~~	https://test-smartnetyliaiz.edu.tr/Login/ApplicationUsersignUp/1
	User Registration
	Name
	Surname
	Phone Number
	Email
	Password
	Password(again)
	I agree with these Terms and Conditions to use this website. I have read the Clarification Text
	□ I consent to my data being used as described here.
Login Page	Save
	Türkçe English

Figure 6 - Entrepreneur Registration Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.2 User Activation

User activation in Smartnet MIS Platform is as follows:

- After the entrepreneur completes the registration, the e-mail with the activation code will be sent to the corresponding e-mail address.
- Upon confirmation of this e-mail, the user becomes active in the system and can log in to the system.
- The status of the user must be specified in the system information (active or inactive)

![](_page_22_Figure_0.jpeg)

Figure 7 - User Activation Chart

Kullanıcı Aktivasyon			
Merhaba #KullanıcıAdıSoyadı# Kullanıcınızı aktif etmek için gerekli bağlantı aşağıdadır.			
	Kullanıcı aktif etmek için	Tiklayınız	
	2023		-

Figure 8 - User Activation Mail Mock up Drawing

## 6.5.3 Entrepreneur Session Login - Logout

User login and logout flow in Smartnet MIS Platform is as follows:

- The entrepreneur must enter the correct e-mail and password data to log in to the system.
- If the entrepreneur enters his data incorrectly, he should be warned by the system, and his entry is not allowed.
- If the entrepreneur forgets his password, the system should send a password reset link to the registered e-mail address, this link should be displayed as a warning on the entrepreneur's screen.
- After the entrepreneur has renewed his password, he can log in to the system again with the correct data.

![](_page_23_Figure_0.jpeg)

Figure 9 - Entrepreneur Login-Logout Diagram

A Web Page	
← → C Q https://	≡
User Login	
E-mail Address Password	
✓ I forgot my password Login	
< Help	

Figure 10 - Entrepreneur Input-Output mock-up Drawing

## 6.5.4 Entrepreneur Password Change - Renewal

Entrepreneurs should be able to change their password in the user settings after logging into the system. If he repeats the old password in the process, the system should fail. If the password change was successful, the new password should be stored in the database.

![](_page_24_Figure_0.jpeg)

Figure 11 - Entrepreneur Password Change/Renewal Scheme

	Şifre Değiştir	x
Eski Şifreniz	<u> </u>	
Yeni Şifrenizi Girin	<u> </u>	
Şifrenizi Tekrar Girin	<u> </u>	
Güncelle		

Figure 12 - Entrepreneur Password Change Mock-up Drawing

If entrepreneurs forget their password, they should be able to reset it. In doing so, the system should send a password reset link to the e-mail address. Entrepreneurs should be able to renew their password by clicking on a link, and the new password should be stored in the database with its current date. Also, the updated date should be sent by the system to the user as a notification e-mail.

![](_page_25_Figure_0.jpeg)

Figure 13 - Entrepreneur Password Renewal Scheme

A Web Page				
<b>← →</b> C	Q https://			=
		User Passwor	d Reset	
	8	E-mail Address		
	•	( User login page	Send	

Figure 14 - Entrepreneur Password Reset Mock up Drawing

## 6.5.5 Entrepreneur Profile Update

Profile updates for an entrepreneur in Smartnet MIS Platform is as follows:

![](_page_26_Figure_0.jpeg)

Figure 15 - Entrepreneur Profile Update Chart

![](_page_26_Figure_2.jpeg)

Figure 16 - Entrepreneur Profile Update Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.6 User Help

Users should be able to message administrative staff via their e-mail information if they have problems registering in the system or otherwise want to provide assistance. Administrative staff should be able to

see this message and send a response. The messages on both sides should be stored in the database along with their date.

![](_page_27_Figure_1.jpeg)

Figure 17 - User Assistance Diagram

A Web Page	
← → C Q https://	Ξ
USER HELP	
(D) E-mail address	
C Telephone	
Your message to us.	
< User login page SEND	

Figure 18 - User Help Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.7 Mentor Registration

The required information is entered on the screen that opens. When you click the save button, an activation email will be sent to the mentor's e-mail address.

	A Web Page	
	<b>X</b> A https://test-smartnet.yildiz.edu.tr/Login/ApplicationUserSignUp/2	
<b>.</b>	Name	
<b>.</b>	Surname	
و	Phone Number	
5	Email	
â	Password	
â	Password(again)	
🗌 I agree v	vith these Terms and Conditions to use this website. I have read the Clarification	Text .
🗌 I consen	t to my data being used as described here.	
Login Page		Save
		11

Figure 19 - Mentor Registration Mock-up Drawing

Clicking on the activation e-mail will add him to the system as a mentor. Users who register in the system will be automatically added by the system to a user group called "Mentor".

	A Web Page	
(https://test-smartnet.yildiz.edu.tr/Ma	anage/List/ListEntity/List	UserGroup
User Group List		
<b>▽</b> Filter		
Search Export Excel Export Pdf		
Group Name	Actions	
Administrative Unit Users	İşlemler	•
Entrepreneurs	İşlemler	<b>•</b>
Investors	İşlemler	
Mentor Evaluator		
Mentors	ışıemier	
System Administrators	İşlemler	•
Trainers	İşlemler	<b>~</b>
Web Maneger	İşlemler	•
Web Portal Users	İşlemler	<b>•</b>
	Users	
		"

Figure 20 - User Groups Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.8 Mentors List

All users who stuffed in the mentor information form will be registered on a listing page created in the "User Administration" > "Mentor list" tab. This page appears for the users of the Administrator user group and the "Mentor Rating Group" who are added to the user group.

Mentör Listesi			
7 Filtrele			
Mentőr Adi O	Yainızca profili tam dolu olanları göster Girişimcilere gösterilecek mentörleri listele		
🕒 Excel Çiktisi Al 🔒 Pl	DF Çiktusi Al		
Excel Çiktisi Al 🕒 Pl Mentôr Adi-Soyadi	DF Çiktusi Al E-mail	Telefon	İşlemler
Excel Çiktisi Al Excel Çiktisi Al Excel Çiktisi Al Excel Çiktisi Al Excel Mentőr Adi-Soyadi Sema Akyasan	DF Çiktisi Al E-moli sema akyasan@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55	işlemler İşlemler
Excel Çiktisi Al P Mentör Adi-Soyadi Sema Akyasan Gökçe Naz Daşdemir	DF Çiktisi Al E-mail sema.akyasan@solvera.com.tr gokce.dasdemir@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55 0545 444 44 44	işlemler İşlemler 💌 İşlemler 💌
Excel Çiklisi Al Pl Mentőr Adi-Soyadi Sema Akyasan Gökçe Naz Daşdemir	DF Çıktısı Al E-mail sema.akyasan@solvera.com.tr gokce.dasdemir@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55 55 0545 444 44 44	iştemler İşlemler İşlemler Detayı Görüntük
Excel Çiktisi Al Pi Mentőr Adi-Soyadi Sema Akyasan Gökçe Naz Daşdemir	DF Çıktısı Al E-mail sema.akyasan@solvera.com.tr gokce.dasdemir@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55 55 0545 444 44 44	iştemler İştemler İştemler O Detayı Görüntü O Detayı Görüntü O Detayı Görüntü O Detayı Görüntü

Figure 21 - Listing Page Mock-up Drawing

- Mentors can be rated by the administrators and evaluators and are automatically approved or rejected by the system according to the score assigned by the administrators and evaluators.
- When a mentor candidate completes their profile, the "Administrator" user group and the "Mentor Evaluator" user group are notified by e-mail.
- The system sends an automatic activation e-mail to all users registered in the system. The account of each user who receives and approves this e-mail becomes active in the system.

#### 6.5.9 Mentor Evaluation

The mentor entering the system is evaluated by the mentor evaluator.

- When you log in from the User Management tab > Mentor List, the administrator users can evaluate using the Evaluate button in the control panel.
- In the rating section, the following items are rated on a Likert scale between 1 and 5, such that:
   1: weak, 2: irrelevant, 3: requirement met, 4: requirement positively met, 5: requirement met and surpassed.

Additional evaluation is given on the following topics:

- Extent of industry experience: at least five years of experience (0-5 points)
- Entrepreneurial background (0-5 points)
- Commitment to the program (0-5 points)
- International exposure (0-5 points)

• Depth of education (0-5 points)

There is also a "Comments/Remarks" section where evaluators can enter their opinions. The weight of the questions is calculated using 20 points on the back. The total weight is scored as 100 points.

The evaluation screen looks like the following and opens as a pop-up window. On the left is a text box to enter the assessment questions, on the right side are observations and notes, and below that is a button to enter the assessment results and mentor into the system.

	A Web Page
Mentör Değerlendirme Formu	
1. Sektör deneyiminin derinliği: (En az 5 yıllık deneyim)	Notlar/Gözlemler
00 01 02 03 04 05	
2. Girişimci geçmişi	
0 0 0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5	
3. Program taahhūdū	
0 0 0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5	
4. Uluslararası ifşa	Topiam Değerlendirme Puanı : 90
0 0 0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5	Girisimciler tarafından listelensin ve istek gönderilebilsin mi
5. Eğitim derinliği	
0 0 0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5	
	Gönder

Figure 22 - Mentor Evaluation Form Mock-up Drawing

Mentör Listesi			
Mentör Adı	O Yalnızca profili tam dolu olanları göster		
search	O Girişimciler tarafından listelenebilir olanları göster		
Excel Çiktisi Al	PDF Çiktisi Al		
Excel Çiktisi Al Mentör Adi-Soyadi	PDF Çiktisi Al E-mail	Telefon	İşlemler
Excel Çiktisi Al Mentör Adı-Soyadı Sema Akyasan	PDF Çiktisi Al E-mail sema.akyasan@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55	işlemler İşlemler
Excel Çiktisi Al Mentör Adi-Soyadı Sema Akyasan Gökçe Naz Daşdemir	PDF Çiktusı Al     E-mail     sema.akyasan@solvera.com.tr     gokce.dasdemir@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55 0545 444 44	İşlemler İşlemler İşlemler
Excel Çiktisi Al Mentör Adı-Soyadı Sema Akyasan Gökçe Naz Daşdemir	PDF Çiktısı Al     E-mall     sema.akyasan@solvera.com.tr     gokce.dasdemir@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55 55 0545 444 44 44	İşlemler İşlemler İşlemler Ə Detayı Görüntü
Excel Çiktisi Al Mentör Adı-Soyadı Sema Akyasan Gökçe Naz Daşdemir	PDF Çiktısı Al E-mail sema.akyasan@solvera.com.tr gokce.dasdemir@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55 55 0545 444 44 44	İşlemler İşlemler 💌 İşlemler 💌 O Detayı Görüntü O Detayı Görüntü O Debarlendirme
Excel Çiktısı Al Mentör Adı-Soyadı Sema Akyasan Gökçe Naz Daşdemir	PDF Çiktisi Al E-mail sema.okyasan@solvera.com.tr gokce.dasdemir@solvera.com.tr	Telefon 0555 555 55 55 0545 444 44 44	işlemler işlemler ▼ işlemler ▼ Detayı Görüntü Dügenle Değerlendirme işlemler Sıl

Figure 23 - Mentor List Mock-up Drawing

After completing the assessment, if you click on the assessment option in the control panel again, the following screen will be displayed, and this page will open as a pop-up window. When the answers change, the score also changes, and when the checkmark is removed, this mentor is no longer displayed for entrepreneurs.

Mentör Değerlendi	rme Formu	
Sektör Deneyiminin Derinliği: Girişimci Geçmişi: Program Teahhüdü	5 3 2	Notlar/Gözlemler:
Uluslararası İfşa: Eğitim Derinliği:	5	dolore eu fugial nulla pariatur. Excepteur sint occaecat cupidatat non proident, sunt in culpa qui officia deserunt mollit anim id est laborum.
		Girişimciler tarafından listelensin ve istek gönderilebilsin mi? Kaydet
		4

Figure 24 - Filled Mentor Evaluation Form Mock-up Drawing

After receiving the activation e-mail, the mentor candidate will receive an email asking them to fill out the mentor information form. Clicking the button in the email will take you to the information form.

C> X ☆ (https://	A Web Poge	
Mentör Başvuruları İçin Bilgile	andirme Maili	
Merhabalar #AdSoyad#,		
Sisteme Mentör olarak kayıt işlemini tamamladınız. Aşa iletilebilmesi için tüm alanların doldurulmuş olması gere	ğıda yer alan butana tıklayıp portaldeki Mentör Bilgi Formunu doldurarak Mentörlük başvurunuzu tamamlayabilirsiniz. Başvurunuzun yönetime ikmektedir. Yöneticinin başvurunuzu onaylamasıyla sistem tarafından mali yoluyla bilgilendirileceksiniz.	9
	Mentör Bilgi Formuna Erişmek İçin Tıklayınız.	

Figure 25 - Mentor Applications Information Mail Mock-up Drawing

After the mentor has registered in the system, completed the activation procedures, and logged into the system, they will be able to see the menus relevant to their role.

6.5.10 Mentor Information Form

The tabs will change from pink to green when the mentor has completed their profile. After you have completed the mentor profile and all fields are green, you can preview the completed version using the Preview button at the bottom of the page or view the completed information as a report using the View My Profile button. When you click on these two buttons, the pages will open in the form of a pop-up.

When you click the "Fill out my profile" button, your profile will be submitted to the administration so you can become a mentor in the system. You cannot update your profile data without being evaluated by the management', and if you click on the 'OK' button, the option to edit the profile will not be displayed in the system.

![](_page_32_Picture_2.jpeg)

Figure 26 - Mentor Profile Completion Confirmation Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.11 Mentor Search for Entrepreneurs

For all users who have an entrepreneur role in the system, a Mentor List will be displayed when they log in from the Matching Management - Mentor List tabs in the menu. This menu should be visible for admin users and entrepreneurs.

		Mentör Lis	itesi		
	smartnet.yildiz.edu.tr/Manage/I	List/ListEntity/Mentör	List		
		Mentor L	istesi		
Size uygun olan veya da	ıha öncesinde iletişim kurduğur	nuz mentörlerin listele	nmesi için lütfen filtreleme ya	apınız.	
İş Deneyimi (Yıl)	Endüstrisi	Tekn	noloji Dikeyi	Odak Noktası	
	Ambalaj Cam ve Cam Ürünleri Çimento ve Çimento Ürü Dayanıklı Tüketim Malları Demir ve Demir Malları Denizcilik A row without a checkbox		Reklam Teknolojisi   Tanm   Yapay Zeka   Otomasyon   Biyoteknoloji   BiockChain row without a checkbox	<ul> <li>☐ Finans</li> <li>☐ ş Modelleme</li> <li>⊘ Pazarlama</li> <li>☐ Dijital Pazarlama</li> <li>☐ Ürün Geliştirme</li> <li>☑ Ekip Oluşturma</li> <li>A row without a chect</li> <li>entörleri listele.</li> </ul>	kbox
Mentör Adı E-postası	İş Deneyimi (Yıl)	Endüstrisi	Teknoloji Dikeyi	Odak Noktası	İşlemler
Sema Yıldırım sema@mail.co	om 1-5 Yıl	Yazılım, Enerji	Siber Güvenlik, Donanım	. Dijital Pazarlama	İşlemler 🔻
Gökçe Daşdemir gokce@mail.c	om 20+	Sağlık	Sağlık Teknolojisi	Ürün Geliştirme, Ekip	İşlemler 🔻
					▶ İstek Gönder
					"

Figure 27 - Mentor List Mock-up Drawing

A pop-up opens when the submit request button is clicked.

Mesaj :	
Mesajınız	
🗌 **Bana ve girişimciliğime dair sistemde var olan bilgilerimin mentör tarafından görüntülenebilmesine rıza gö	isteriyorum.
İleti	şime Geç

Figure 28 - Sending a Request to Mentor Screen Mock-up Drawing

It is mandatory to give consent and check the box. It should be noted that it gives its approval to the database. As long as there is no tick, the "Contact the Mentor" button remains passive, and the system does not allow it to be clicked.

Once the entrepreneur has requested a mentor, the button remains inactive and cannot be requested again unless this request is approved by the mentor.

If the request is denied by the mentor, the entrepreneur cannot resend the request in the same manner. However, if the mentor has approved the request, the entrepreneur can make multiple requests. In this case, we can use the 'Send Request' button in the transaction area to open a list and list all requests sent to the same mentor by date. Also, requests can be sent from this list, and new requests can be sent using the "Add New" button.

~	isteklerim				
~	יע <b>י</b> ער	nttps://test-smartnet/jilal2.edu.tr/Manage/List/ListEntity/Menta	rList/istekierim		
			Gönderdiğim İstekler		
1	Durum				
	Onaylandi Reddedildi Deberlerdirildi				
	A row without a checkbox				Yeni Ekle
ו	Mentör Adı	E-postasi	Durum	İstek Tarihi	İşlemler
	Ufuk Batum	ufukb@mail.com	Onaylandı	01. 01. 2023	İşlemler 👻
	Ufuk Batum	ufukb@mail.com	Onaylandı	01. 02. 2023	İşlemler 🔻
	Ufuk Batum	ufukb@mail.com	Onaylandı	20. 04. 2023	İşlemler 👻
	Ufuk Batum	ufukb@mail.com	Onay/ Red Bekliyor	31. 06. 2023	İşlemler 👻
					Isteği Gör Mentörü Değerlendir
					"

#### 6.5.12 Mentor Requests

Figure 29 - Mentor Requests Mock-up Drawing

On this opening list page, the mentor can be rated separately for each request sent to the mentor.

![](_page_34_Picture_1.jpeg)

Figure 30 - Mentor Evaluation Mock-up Drawing

The mentor will be notified of contractor requests both by e-mail and by notification in the system.

The mentor may approve or reject these requests, in which case the entrepreneur will not be informed. The page where mentors can request, approve, reject, or evaluate entrepreneurs who want to contact them can be reached through the Matching Management - My Entrepreneurs tabs. This page is only accessible to users in the Mentors user group. By default, when the mentor clicks on the list of entrepreneurs, he will see all the entrepreneurs who have sent him a request in the list.

A		Gir	işimci Talepleri		
	://test-smartnet.yildiz.edu.tr/Manage/List.	/ListEntity/GirisimciTalepleri			
		Giri	şimci Talepleri		
VE Filtrele					
esigned approx 050%87 by the table by the table by the table by the table by the table by the table by the table constrained	Durum Onay/Red Bek Ø Deserter Ø	ilyor eckbox			
Girişimci	Girişimci E-mail	Girişimci Telefon	Durum	İstek Tarihi	İşlemler
Sema Yıldırım	sema@mail.com	0555 555 55 55	Onaylandı	01.04.2023	İşlemler 👻
Sema Yıldırım	sema@mail.com	0555 555 55 55	Onay /Red Bekliyor	15. 06. 2023	İşlemler 🔻
Gökçe Daşdemir	gokce@mail.com	0444 444 44 44	Reddedildi	01. 04. 2023	Girişimci Profil
Emre Smekal	emre@mail.com	0888 888 88 88	Değerlendirildi	31. 05. 2023	i si

6.5.13 Entrepreneurs Requests from the Mentor

Figure 31 - Entrepreneur Requests Mock-up Drawing

An e-mail is sent to the entrepreneur when the mentor completes the received requests.

If the entrepreneur's request is pending or rejected, he cannot send another request to the same mentor, but if approved, the same entrepreneur can send multiple requests to the same mentor. These requests can be distinguished by the data in the mentor's list.

He sees only the primary information in the column about entrepreneurs and can see the entrepreneur's profile in a pop-up window that opens when he clicks on the "Entrepreneur Profile" button in the transaction area.

After reviewing the profile, you can see the message the entrepreneur wrote to the mentor and approve or reject the entrepreneur using the "View Request" button in the transaction area.

Mesaj:	
Mesajınız	
🗸 Geri Dön	☑ Onayla Keddet

Figure 32 - Approve/Reject Entrepreneur Mock-up Drawing

If approved, the "Rate Entrepreneur" button will appear in the transaction area for that entrepreneur. When you click the 'Rate Entrepreneur' button. A pop-up window will appear (see below).

	Girişimciyi Değerlendirme	
Görüşme Ne Zaman Yapıldı?	Görüşme Ne Kadar Sürdü?	Görüşmeniz Nasıl Gerçekleşti?
2023 Thu          reserver xes         >           a         H         T         T         F         a           Feb 16         1         2         a	<ul> <li>● 0 - 30 dk</li> <li>○ 30 - 60 dk</li> <li>○ 60 + dk</li> </ul>	Yüzyüze     Telefon görüşmesi ile     Online platformda görüşme ile     Mesajlaşma ile
a se si se se se se si se <u>CANCEL</u> OK	A row without a radio button	A row without a radio button
Mentörlük desteği sağladığın girişim Girişimcinin ve ekibin teknik yetkinlik seviyesi Girişimcinin ve ekibin satış, pazarlama, finans ve genel yönetim t Ürünün/hizmetin özgünlük ve yenilik seviyesi Ticarileşme potansiyeli Uluslararasılaşma potansiyeli <u>Sonuç olarak, çirişimin yüksek piyasa değerine ulaşma potansi</u>	xell xell xell xell xell xell xell xell	dan değerlendir ☆ ☆ ☆ ☆
		Kaydet

Figure 33 - Entrepreneur Evaluation Screen Mock-up Drawing

The "Delete" button in the transaction panel allows the mentor to completely remove this entrepreneur from their list. As usual in our standardization, clicking the "Delete" button will not perform a deletion without approval.

Bağlantılı öğeler bu öğeyle birlikte silinecek. Öğeyi silmek istediğinizden emin misiniz?						
Evet Hayır						

Figure 34 - Delete Screen Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.14 Investor Invitation

A user group is created as 'User Management > User Groups > Investors'.

When you click on "Users" in the "Operations" panel, the users are displayed in the system.

When the "Delete" option is clicked in the "Actions" panel, a pop-up window opens at the top of the page, displaying a confirmation question with yes/no options.

At the same time, each investor becomes a user. When the investor joins the system, he is added to the users.

Ku	Illanic	ılar					🚝 🌲 🕼 Türk	kçe Sema AKYASAN [→
\ \ \ F	iltrele							<b>@</b> –
Ad								
٩	Arama	Excel'e Aktar	Pdf'e Aktar					
Toplar	m:2							+ Yeni Ekle
Ad	Soyad	E-Posta	Telefon Numarası	Son Giriş Tarihi	Oluşturulma Tarihi	Roller	Kullanıcı Aktivasyonu	İşlemler
Test	Deneme	Test@gmail.com	333 33 33	29.03.2023	01.03.2023	Yatırımcı	Aktif	İşlemler I Düzenle ≫ Kullanıcı Olarak Giriş Yapın Pasifleştir III Sil
Can	Taşkın	ct@gmail.com	444 44 44		03.03.2023	Yatırımcı	Pasif	işlemler ▼ ② Düzenle ● Dovet Maili Gönder Sil

Figure 35 - Investor Invitation - Users Screen Mock-up Drawing

The Send invitation mail option is displayed if the user in question is not active. If he is active, this option will not be displayed.

When you click the Edit option, the following screen opens as a pop-up window.

Kullanıcı Güncelleme						
Ad		Eposta				
Soyad		Telefon				
Güncelle						

Figure 36 - Investor Invitation Screen Mock-up Drawing

First name, last name, e-mail and phone information for the investor can be changed on this screen.

The investor added to the user list will be inactive. An invitation e-mail will be sent to the investor by clicking the Send invitation e-mail option in the transaction area. The same process applies to the investor added to the user list in the User Management Menu > Investor List.

•	
	SARTN SARTN
	Yatırımcı Davet Maili
	Sayın Davetli,
	Smartnet tarafından girişimcilere olanak sağlayan yatırımcı listesine davet edildiniz. Aşağıdaki 'Sisteme Giriş Yapmak İçin Tiklayınız' butonuna tıklayarak daveti kabul edebilir ve Smartnet sistemine 'abc@gmail.com' adresiniz. Ile giriş yapabıllırsiniz.
	Şifrenizi bilmiyorsanız "Şifrenizi mi Unuttunuz?" seçeneği ile şifrenizi yenileyebilirsiniz. Şifre yenileme işleminizden sonra isteme giriş yapabilir ve Yatırımcı Profili menüsünden profilinizi doldurabilirsiniz.
H	Sisteme Giriş Yapmak İçin Tıklayınız
	"

Figure 37 - Investor Invitation Mail Mock-up Drawing

The investor joins the system with the notification included in the e-mail by clicking the Click to Login button in the invitation e-mail.

The investor who logs in to the system will see the received investor request on the main page as a notification.

#### 6.5.15 Investor Profile Entry

After logging into the system, the investor clicks on the investor profile at the bottom of the menu and enters his data.

The screen for entering the investment data is divided into two tabs: Personal Information and Other (Field) Information.

SMARTNET YAT	FIRIMCI BİLGİ F	ORMU	¥Z 🌲 🕼 Tür	kçe Sema AKYASAN [→
Kighed Higher Coger(Ann.) Higher				
Bağlı Olunan Fon ve/veya Yatırımcı Ağı:				
Yatırım için Tercih Edilen Sektörler:	□ Com ve Com Ürünleri ☑ İlaç □ Ambalaj			
Yatırım için Tercih Edilen Teknoloji Dikeyleri:	□ Reklam Teknolojisi ☑ Yapay Zeka			
Yatırım Yapılacak Girişim için Tercih Edilen Bölge:	Seçiniz 💌			
Tahmini Yatırım Büyüklüğü:	Seçiniz 💌			
Yatırım Fazı:	Seçiniz 👻			
Önemli aördüăünüz baska bir husus/konu varsa li	ütfen ekleviniz:			
< Geri Dôn 🛛 🖬 Kaydet		🗟 On Izleme 🔒	Profili Göster	😫 Profilimi Tamamla

Figure 38 - Investor Information Form Personal Information Tab Mock-up Drawing

SMARTNET YATIRIMCI BİLGİ FORMU	žΞ 🌲 🛯 Túrk	.çe Sema AKYASAN [→					
rojum nigher 🔪 riger (Ann) nighte							
Bağlı Olunan Fon ve/veya Yatırımcı Ağı: A Yatırımcı Ağı							
Yatırım için Tercih Edilen Sektörler: Ambalaj , Cam ve Cam Ürünleri							
Yatırım için Tercih Edilen Teknoloji Dikeyleri:Tarım, Yapay Zeka							
Yatırım Yapılacak Girişim için Tercih Edilen Bölge: Yurtiçi/Marmara							
Tahmini Yatırım Büyüklüğü:12345678 \$							
Yatırım Fazı:A Serisi Yatırım							
Önemli gördüğünüz başka bir husus/konu varsa lütfen ekleyiniz: Önemli Konu							
< Geri Dön 🔁 Kaydet 🗗	Profili Göster	👔 Profilimi Tamamla					

#### Figure 39 - Investor Information Form Field Information Tab Mock-up Drawing

When "Complete My Profile" button is clicked, the information should appear under the Matching Management - Investor List menu item under the title. No adjustments will be made to the profile information after this step. Once the investor profile is completed, it will be visible to entrepreneurs.

#### 6.5.16 Entrepreneurs Seeing the Investor List

The Matching Management menu on the entrepreneur's screen looks like this: Mentor List, My Mentor Requests, Investor List, My Investor Requests.

Yatır ⊽ Filt	ımcı Liste	esi				1	E <b>≜ 0</b> 0⊺	ürkçe Sen O	na AKYASAN [→ —
Yatırım iç ○ Aramı ② İlaç ② Made 1 adet ög Seçilenle	çin Tercih Edilen Sektör a ncilik e seçildi. ri Kaldır.	Yatırım için Tercih Ediler Arama Platform İnovasyo Edtech 1 adet öge seçildi. Seçilenleri Kaldır.	ı Teknoloji Dikeyi	Yatırım Yapılar Bölge Arama Marmara MENA 1 adet öge se Seçilenleri Ka	cok Girişim için Tercih Edilen Çildi. Idır.	Tahmini yatırım büyük         0       0-50.0004\$         50.000-150.0004\$         150.000-100.0004\$         400.000-100.0004\$         1.000.000440.0004\$	düğü ; \$ v\$ keek\$	Yatırım Fazı Arama A Serisi Y C Serisi Y 1 adet öge s Seçilenleri H	Yatırım Yatırım eçildi. Galdır.
Toplam:18 Yatırımcının Adı Sovadı	Bağlı Olunan Fon ve/veva Yatırımcı Ağı	Yatırım için Tercih Edilen Sektörler	Yatırım için Tercih Edilen Tekno	oloji Dikeyleri	Yatırım Yapılacak Girişim içi Tercih Edilen Bölge	n Tahmini N Yatırım Büyüklüğü(\$)	Yatırım Fazı		İşlemler
Ahmet Yilmoz	A Fonu	Ambalaj	Tarım, Biyoteknoloji		Batı Avrupa	150.000-400.000	Tohum A	samasi	işlemler
Ali Can	B Fonu	Cam ve Cam Ürünleri, Denizcilik	Siber Güvenlik		ABD	0-50.000	A Serisi	Yatırım	
Semih Uğur	C Fonu	İlaç	Lojistik ve Son Mil Te	elimatı	Marmara	400.000-1.000.000	Halka	Arz	
Damla Nur	D Fonu	Madencilik	Platform İnovasyonu		İstanbul	1.000.000′dan yük≋ek	F/G Seris	si Yatırım	
Selen Alkın 10	F Fonu	Kimya, Medya ve İletişim, Mobilya	Edtech		Doğu Avrupa	0-50,000	B Serisi	Yatırım	

Figure 40 - Investor List Mock-up Drawing

The Send Request option in the transaction area allows the investor to send a request only once.

Clicking Send Request will open a popup page. If the checkbox is unchecked, the Send Request button will not be enabled.

	Girişimci Yatırımcı Talep Ekleme	扫	٠	SD Türkçe	Sema AKYASAN	[→
Girişimci Mesajı:						
			ie	teži Gönd	lor	
Bana ve girişimime	e dair sistemde var olan bilgilerimin yatırımcı tarafından görüntü	ülen	me	sine izin	veriyorum.	

Figure 41 - Investor Request Submission Mock-up Drawing

When a request is sent to the investor, the investor can view it via email as well as be notified via the system. The email screen will look like the following.

![](_page_40_Picture_3.jpeg)

Figure 42 - Entrepreneur Notification Mail to the Investor Mock-up Drawing

## 6.5.17 Investors Entrepreneurs Requests List

Under Matching Management, there should be the My Entrepreneurs menu. In this menu, the investor should see the entrepreneurs who have sent him a request.

The menu that entrepreneurs can see should look like in the list.

Giri	şimcile	rim			ž	🛕 🛯 Türkçe	Sema AKYASAN [ →
Girişimcin ☐ Arama ☑ Cem Çe ⊡ Sema Yi 1 adet öge s Seçilenleri I	<b>in Adı Soyadı</b> lik ldırım kaldır.	Girişimin Y Değerine I	üksek Piyasa Jlaşma Potansiyeli Puanı				
Toplam:18 Girişimcinin Adı Soyadı Cem Çelik	Girişimci Telefon 0888 888 88 88	Girişimci E-Posta cç@gmail.com	Mentor Puonian Mentor1: 50 Mentor2: 60 Mentor3:30 Mentor4:90	Girişimin Yüksek Piyasa Değerine Ulaşma Potansiyeli Puanı 5	İstek Tarihi 22.11.2022		İşlemler İşlemler v Girişimci Profili İsteği Gör İsteği Değerlendir
10							

Figure 43 - Investors Entrepreneurs List Screen Mock-up Drawing

On this screen, the investor can see the points that the entrepreneur has received from the mentors. But he can also get information about the date when he submitted the application.

After clicking on the "See Request" option, the following screen will open as a pop-up window.

Girişimci İsteği				
Girişimci Mesajı:	Yatırımcım olur musun?			
		-		

Figure 44 - Investors viewing Entrepreneur Request Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.18 Investors Request Evaluation

After clicking the Evaluate request option, the following screen opens as a pop-up.

![](_page_42_Picture_0.jpeg)

Figure 45 - Investors Entrepreneur Request Evaluation Mock Up Drawing

Only one option can be checked here. When I submit the evaluation, it appears under the investor's response column in the list of the Entrepreneur's Investor Requests menu.

#### 6.5.19 Entrepreneur Viewing Investors Response

The screen where the entrepreneur will see their investor's response should be the My Investor Requests page under Matching Management. The My Investor Requests page looks like this.

Yatırın	Yatırımcı İsteklerim						Sema AKYASAN	[→
⊽ Filtre	e							
Yatırımcının Adı Soyadı ☐ Arama Ø Naz D. Ø Gökçe D.								
1 adet öge se Seçilenleri Ko	çildi. ıldır.							
Toplam:2								
Yatırımcının	Yatırımcı Unvanı	Yatırımcının Cevabı	İstek Tarihi	İşlemler				
Adi Soyadi Naz D.	Müdür	Daha sonra görüşebilirim.	22.11.2021	<mark>işlemler</mark> ▼ ◆ Mesajı Gör				
Gökçe D.	Müdür Yardımcısı		16.10.2022					
10								

Figure 46 - My Investor Requests Screen Mock-up Drawing

After clicking on the See Message option, the following screen should appear where the entrepreneur writes his message to the investor.

		Æ	Ļ	AB Türkçe	Sema AKYASAN	(→
	Girişimci İsteği					
Girişimci Mesajı:	Kimya sektöründe yatırımcım olur musun?			;	×	

Figure 47 - Entrepreneur Message Screen Mock-up Drawing

6.5.20 Entrepreneurs Information Mail on Investor Request

If the investor responds to the entrepreneur's request, the entrepreneur will be notified both within the system and via e-mail.

![](_page_43_Picture_5.jpeg)

Figure 48 - Entrepreneur Information Mail Mock-up Drawing

6.5.21 Investors viewing the Entrepreneurs List

The investor should see all entrepreneurs who have or have not made a request. This screen where you can see all entrepreneurs should be under Matching Management - All Entrepreneurs.

				ž 🔺 🕯	Türkçe	Sema AKYASAN
Tüm Girişimciler						
▼ Filtrele						• -
Girişimci		Girişimcinin Sektörü	Bana İstek Gönd	lerenleri Listele		
Arama Aa AA Aa AA Begom CyGKVURF Bregom CyGKVURF Bregom CyGKVURF Bregom CyGKVURF Bregom CyGKVURF Bregom CyGKUN	gilenteri Koldu	Denizcilik Deri ve Deri Ürünleri Enerji A row without a checkbox	Seçiniz Evet Hayır			
Toplam:9 Girişimci	💠 Oirişimci E	-mail	11 Girişimci Telefon	Girişimcinin Sektörü	işlemler	• • • • •
AG AA	aa@mail.c	om	+90 10 10 10 11 11	Enerji	ピ işlemler -	
Begüm ÇİÇEKYURT	begumcice	kyurt@hotmail.com	+90 553 328 81 69	Deri ve Deri Ürünleri	B <sup>*</sup> işlemler -	
Concern and and and a		at the use sees	1 4 4 Y22 45 5 200 Y2		re islamiar	

Figure 49 - Investors view All Entrepreneurs Mock-up Drawing

There should be a details option in the action bar. When you click on the details, the details of the entrepreneur should be seen.

#### 6.5.22 Administrators View of Entrepreneur-Investor Matching

Entrepreneur-Investor requests are added under the Twinning Management menu. The manager will see them as Entrepreneur Investor requests under the Enterprise Twinning Management menu item.

Sorting on this page should be by sector. Those with the most matches in a sector will be placed at the top.

Girişim	ci -Yatı	rımcı <sup>-</sup>	<b>Faleple</b> r	i			žΞ	¢.	<b>A</b> ⊇ Türkçe	Sema AKYASAN
√ Filtrele									0	_
Yatırımcı		Girişimci	Dur	um					0	-
<ul> <li>Arama</li> <li>Noz D.</li> <li>Gökçe D.</li> <li>1 adet öge seçildi.</li> <li>Seçilenleri Kaldır.</li> </ul>		<ul> <li>□ Arama</li> <li>☑ Naz. D.</li> <li>□ Sena B.</li> <li>1 adet öge seçild</li> <li>Seçilenleri Kaldır</li> </ul>	_ A ♀ ii ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓	rama gimi çekti, görüşmek i ladına sonra görüşebilir ladırlık/olgunluk seviyı gilendiğim sektör/teki gilenmiyorum. at öge seçildi. lenleri Kaldır.	istiyorum. im esi uygun değil. noloji değil.					
<b>Q</b> Arama	Excelle A	Aktar	Pdf'e Aktar							
Toplam:18 Yatırımcının Adı Soyadı	Yatırımcı Telefon	Yatırımcı E-Posta	Girişimcinın Adı Soyadı	Girişimci Telefon	Girişimci E-Posta	Yatırımcının Cevabı	İstek Tar	rihi	i	şlemler
Ahmet Yılmaz	0555 555 55 55	ay@gmaiil.com	Cem Çelik	0888 888 88 88	cç@gmail.com	İlgimi çekti, görüşmek istiyorum.	01.11.202	2	İşle	emler 🗸
Ali Can	0555 555 55 55	ac@gmail.com	Sema Yıldırım	0888 888 88 88	sy@gmail.com	Daha sonra görüşebilirim.	23.03.20	23	İşle	emler 🗸
Semih Uğur	0555 555 55 55	su@gmail.com	Gökçe Naz	0888 888 88 88	gn@gmail.com	Hazırlık/olgunluk seviyesi uygun değil.	13.07.202	1	İşle	emler 🗸
Damla Nur	0555 555 55 55	dn@gmail.com	Naz Daşdemir	0888 888 88 88	nd@gmail.com	İlgilendiğim sektör/teknoloji değil.	29.04.20	20	İşle	emler 🗸
Selen Alkın	0555 555 55 55	sa@gmail.com	İrem Şahin	0888 888 88 88	ıs@gmail.com	İlgilenmiyorum.	24.24.20	22	5	Girişimci Mesajı

Figure 50 - Admin List of Entrepreneur-Investor Matchmaking Mock-up Drawing

Clicking "View Request" will open a pop-up message of the request sent to the entrepreneur.

	Girişimci İsteği	
Girişimci Mesajı:	Kimya sektöründe yatırımcım olur musun?	<

Figure 51 - Administrators viewing the Entrepreneur Request to the Investor Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.23 IPR Module

This platform will also be the place for announcing patents. SMEs, startups, entrepreneurs, academics, and industry can publish their patents on SMARTNET so that interested parties can find patents and current topics on the research topic.4.7.1. Creation of the List of Beneficiary Institution of Intellectual Property Rights.

The Institutions List submenu should be located under the User Management menu.

![](_page_45_Picture_7.jpeg)

![](_page_45_Figure_8.jpeg)

The content of this menu should include the Institution Name, Institution Contact Information, Institution Establishment Date, Total Number of Employees, and User Institution Types. Adding should be possible with the Add New button on the list page. Users will be able to add their information from this section. The list should have an option IPR users in the transactions panel. With this option, users belonging to the institution should be able to be entered.

![](_page_46_Figure_0.jpeg)

Figure 53 - IPR Module List of Beneficiary Institutions Mock-up Drawing

![](_page_46_Figure_2.jpeg)

Figure 54 - IPR Module Beneficiary Institution Data Entry Screen Mock-up Drawing

Filtrele  Ad soyad	Bağlı Olduğu Kurum			<b>()</b> –
Ad soyad	Bağlı Olduğu Kurum			
Arama Excel'e A	Pdf'e Aktar			+ Yeni Ekle
Toplam:2				
Ad Soyad E-Posta	Telefon	Bağlı Olduğu Kurum	Davet Maili Sayısı	İşlemler
Deniz Çelik dcelik@mail.com	0777 777 77 77			İşlemler ▼
Cem Tepe ctepe@mail.com	0111 111 11 11			Davet Maili Gönder

Figure 55 - IPR Module Beneficiary Institution Users List Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.24 Sending Invitation Mail to Users

FSMH Kullanıcı Davet Maili
Merhaba #KurumAdi# Kullanicisi,
Smartnet tarafından FSMH Kullarıcı listesine davet edildiniz. Kullanıcınızı aktifleştirmek için 'Sisteme Giriş Yapmak İçin Tıklayınız' butonuna tıklayarak daveti kabul edebilir ve 'abc@gmail.com' adresiniz ile Smartnet sistemine giriş yapabilirsiniz.
Şifrenizi bilmiyorsanız "Şifrenizi mi Unuttunuz?" bölümünden şifrenizi sıfırlayabilir ve oluşturacağınınz yeni şifre ile sisteme giriş yapabilirsiniz.
Sisteme Giriş İçin: Tikloyınız
4

Figure 56 – IPR Module User Invitation Mail Mock-up Drawing

Users must access the system with the "Click" button. Every user who clicks on the "Click here" button must be activated in the system. The "IPR Users" group must be added to the user groups. Users logged in to the system should be added to this group. The content of the group list should be as follows.

Fikri Mü	ülkiyet Haklarından Yararlanıcı Kullanıcılar		
V Filtrele		0	-
Ad soyad	Excelle Aktor		
Toplam:2			
Ad Soyad	E-Posta	İşlemler	
Deniz Çelik	dcelik@mail.com	işlemler ↓ Sil	
Cem Tepe	ctepe@mail.com		

Figure 57 - IPR Module Users List Mock-up Drawing

The screen of the IPR user logging in to the system should look like the following:

![](_page_48_Picture_3.jpeg)

Figure 58 - IPR Module Users Menu Layout Mock-up Drawing

## 6.5.25 Establishment of Institution Profile

The IPR user logging on to the system should be able to enter the setup information in the Setup Profile menu under the IPR Administration menu.

Fikri Mülkiyet Haklarından Yararla	nıcı Kurum Bilgileri	
Kurum Adı		
Toplam patent sayısı		
Ticarileşmiş patent sayısı		
Toplam faydalı model		
Ticarileşen faydalı model sayısı		
Toplam marka tescili sayısı		
Ticarileştirilen marka tescili sayısı		
Toplam tasarım sayısı		
Ticarileştirilen tasarım sayısı		
Kurumun uyguladığı (ekosisteme açtığı) özgün programların (önkuluçka, kuluçka, hızlandırma, vb. ismi ve kısa tanıtımı		
Kurumun uyguladığı programlardan "Best Practice" olarak değerlendirdiği bir vaka		
		Kaydet

Figure 59 - IPR Beneficiary Institution Profile Entry Mock-up Drawing

Employees in the same organization should have the authority to update information.

This authorization should be possible with the update option in the actions panel.

Fikri Mülkiyet Haklarından Yararlanıcı Kurum	Bilgileri		
Filtrele Toplam patent sayısı     Ticarileşen faydalı model sayısı	Ticorileştirilen tasarım sayısı		⊚ <i>−</i>
Arama Excel'e Aktar Pdf'e Aktar Toplam: 1 Kurum Toplam Ticarileşmiş Toplam Ticarileşen faydalı Adı palent sayısı patent sayısı faydalı model model sayısı	Toplam marka Ticarileştirilen marka Toplam tasanım tescili sayısı sayısı tescili sayısı	Kurumun uyguladığı (ekosisteme açtığı) özgün programların öfskuluşka, kuluşka, Ticarileştirilen tasanım sayısı ve kısa lanıtımı	Kurumun uyguladiği programlardan "Best Prostice" olarak değerlendirdiği bir vaka Wancelle

#### Figure 60 - Information of the Beneficiary Institution of IPR Module Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.26 Inputting Good Practices Information

When the page is opened for the first time, the list should be empty. Adding should be done with "Add new" button.

Here the "operations" panel should be restricted according to authority. The user should only be able to update and delete the information added by a person in the institution they belong to.

The View option should allow other institution to see their best practices.

İyi Uyg	julamalar					
V Filtrele Kurum Adı		Kurum Türü □ TTO ☑ Diğer Kurumsal	Uyg	ulama Adı		⊚ -
Arama Toplam:3	Excel'e Aktar	Pdf'e	Aktar			+ Yeni Ekle
Uygulama Adı	Açıklama	Çıktı	Kurum Türü	Kurum Adı	Güncelleme tarihi	İşlemler 🗸
Uygulama 1	Bu bir açıklamadır daha f görüntüle	iazla				Görüntüle C. Güncelle
Uygulama 2	Bu bir açıklamadır daha f görüntüle	azla				💼 Sil
Uygulama 3	Bu bir açıklamadır daha f görüntüle	azla				

Figure 61 - Best Practises List Mock-up Drawing

İyi Uyg	ulamalar	
Uygulama Adı		
Açıklama		
Çıktısı		
Görsel/Dosya	pdf ya da resim	
		Kaydet Kaydet ve Yeni Ekle

Figure 62 - Best Practises New Entry Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.27 Creating Portfolio Information

The IPR user should be able to fill in the content of the list under three main headings: Trademark Portfolio Information, Design Portfolio Information, and Patent/Utility Model Portfolio Information.

6.5.27.1 Creation of Brand Portfolio Information

When the page is first opened, the list should be empty. Adding should be done with "Add new". Brand name, rights holder, attorney information, etc. on the new entries screen. A screen should appear for entering data.

![](_page_51_Figure_6.jpeg)

Figure 63 - Brand Portfolio List Mock-up Drawing

Fikri Sınai Mülkiyet Hal	kları Marka Portföyü Bilgileri	
Görsel Fotoğrafı Yükleyiniz		
Hak Sahibi		
Başvuru Numarası		
Başvuru Tarihi		
Durum Seçiniz Taslak Tescil Voyin		
Müddet(Geçersiz)		
Tescil Numarası		
Tescil Tarihi		
Yenileme Tarihi		
Vekil Bilgisi		
Notlar		
Sınıflar		-
İletişim Bilgileri	Kaydet Veni Ekle	]

Figure 64 - Adding a Brand Portfolio Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.27.2 Creating Design Portfolio Information

When the page is first opened, the list should be empty. Adding should be done with "Add new". On the new addition screen, the application number\*, registration date\*, beneficiary\*, etc. A screen should appear to enter information.

Fikri Sınai Mü ⊽ Fitrele	lkiyet Ha	akları Tasarın	n Portföyü			© -
Hak Sahibi Seçiniz YTÜ Yıldız TGB						
Arama Excel'e Aktar Toplam:3	Pdf'e Aktor			Bülten	Görsel	– Yeni Ekle İşlemler
Başvuru No Başvuru Tarihi Tescil No 2017 08055	Hak Sahibi YILDIZ TEKNİK ÜNİVERSİTESİ	Tasarımcılar FURKAN KILIÇ, ERHAN AKDOĞAN, SERHAT YATAR	Açıklamalar Protez El	24.12.2017		işlemler ▼ C Güncelle
2021 014034	YILDIZ TEKNİK ÜNİVERSİTESİ	ÖNCEL AKIN, İRFAN ARMAĞAN ABACI, ERHAN AKDOĞAN	Giyilebilir üst uzuv dış iskelet robot sistemi	9.02.2022	A. & M.	i Sii
2019 07911	YILDIZ TEKNİK ÜNİVERSİTESİ	ÖNCEL AKIN, İRFAN ARMAĞAN ABACI, ERHAN AKDOĞAN	Hareket Destek Sistemi	24.01.2020	2 1	

Figure 65 - Design Portfolio List Mock-up Drawing

Fikri Sınai Mülkiyet Hakları Tasarım Portföyü Bilgileri		
Başvuru No		
Başvuru Tarihi		
Tescil No		
Tescil Tarihi		
Hak Sahibi		
Tasarimcilar		
Açıklamalar		
Bülten Tarihi		
Görsel Fotoğrafr Yükleyiniz		
	Kaydet	Kaydet ve Yeni Ekle

Figure 66 - Adding a Design Portfolio Item Mock-up Drawing

#### 6.5.27.3 Creating a Patent/Utility Model Portfolio

When the page is first opened, the list should be empty. Adding should be done with "Add new". On the new addition screen, Publication Number, Publication Date, Technical Area, Right-holder\*, etc. There should be a screen where the information is entered.

Fikri Sınai Mü ⊽ Filtrele	ilkiyet Hakları	Patent/F	aydalı N	1odel Po	rtföyü	© -	
Başıvıru Yapıldı mı? Seçiniz ▼ ☑ Evet ☑ Höyır Arama Excel'e Atdar	Başvuru Durumu Seçiniz V Tescil Başvuru Pdfre Aktar					+ Yeni Ekle	
Toplam:3 Ülke Referans Vekil Teknik Kodu No No Alan	Başvuru Adı BBF Başvuru Adı No yapildi.m?	Hak Ana Potent Sahibi No	Başvuru İşlem Ya No Tarihi No	yin Yoyın Tescil Te Tanhi No Ta≀	sell Hok rihi Bulvşçu Sahipilği	Bapvuru Bapvuru Delay Vekil Not Durumu Durumu	Işlemler Göncellere Tarihi 2 Güncelle ∰ Sil

Figure 67 - Patent/Utility Model Portfolio List Mock-up Drawing

Fikri Sınai Mülkiyet Hakları Patent/Fay	ıdalı Model Portföyü Bilgiler
Ülke Kodu	Yayın Tarihi
Referans No	Tescil Tarihi
Vekil No	Buluşçu
Teknik Alan	Hak Sahipliği
BFF No	Vekil
Başvuru Yapıldı mı? Seçiniz	Notlar
Hayır	Başvuru Durumu Seçiniz
Başvuru Adı	Başvuru Hazırlanıyor
Hak Sahibi	Başvuru Yapıldı Basvuru Arastırma Raporu Talepli Yapıldı
Ana Patent No	Başvuru Detay Durumu
Başvuru No	Güncelleme Terihi
İşlem Tarihi	
Yayın No	
	Kaydet Kaydet ve Yeni Ekle

Figure 68 - Adding a Patent/Utility Model Portfolio Item Mock-up Drawing

## 7. DATABASE DESIGN

#### Abbreviations

Short Name	Long Name	Definition
R	requirement	Indicates that the field cannot be left blank.
U	unique	This means that the data is unique.
РК	primary key	This means the data is marked as primary key.
FC	foreign key	This means that the data is marked as a foreign key.

## Entrepreneur

field	R	U	<b>FK/PK</b>	Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК	It refers to the identification number that is uniquely given to each Entrepreneur.
Name	R	U		It refers to the area where the business or company name is kept. It cannot be left blank. This is the text box area.
phone	R	U		It refers to the Telephone number given specifically to each Entrepreneur. It cannot be left blank. This is the phone box area.
E-mail	R	U		It refers to the area that is suitable for mail format, specific to each entrepreneur and received for communication purposes. This is the e-mail box field.
WebAddress				It refers to the area where the addresses of the web pages belonging to the entrepreneurs are kept. This is the junction box area.
				It refers to the area where LinkedIn addresses of entrepreneurs are kept. This is the junction box area.
Description				It refers to the area where the addresses of the web pages belonging to the entrepreneurs are kept. This is the text field.
Address				It refers to the area where LinkedIn addresses of entrepreneurs are kept. This is the text field.
FoundationDate	R			It keeps the establishment date field entered for the venture and cannot be left blank. This is the date picker field.

sector	FK (S Table)	Sector	It refers to the area where the sector belonging to entrepreneurs is held. This is the multiple checkbox field.
TechnologyField			It refers to the area where technology areas belonging to entrepreneurs are kept. This is the multiple checkbox field.
AddUserID			It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.
AddDate			It is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept. here the fields should be revised for each entrepreneur. It will be written separated by commas.
UpdateUserId			This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
UpdateDate			This is the field where the entrepreneur update date is kept.
version			It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.
PrevVersion			It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.

## Entrepreneur Project Investment Detail

field	R	U	<b>FK/PK</b>	Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК	It refers to the uniquely given identification number for each Entrepreneur Project Investment Detail.
EntrepreneurId	R	U	FC (Entrepreneur Table)	It refers to the area where the entrepreneur or company identity is kept.
status				It is the area where the information about the stage of the entrepreneur or the company is kept. This is the dropdown.
InvestmentType				It refers to the area where the investment type sought for the venture is held. This is the dropdown.

UsagePurpose	It is the area where the intended use of the investment is stored. This is the dropdown.
AddUserID	It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.
AddDate	It is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept.
UpdateUserID	This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
UpdateDate	This is the field where the update date is kept.
version	It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.
PrevVersion	It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.

## Entrepreneur Staff Detail Information

field	R	U	<b>FK/PK</b>	Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК	It refers to the identification number kept for each personnel.
Entrepreneurld			FC (Entrepreneur Table)	It refers to the area where the entrepreneur or company identity is kept.
Name	R			It is the field where the name information of the personnel is kept. This is the text box area.
Gender	R			This is the area where the gender information of the personnel is kept. This is the dropdown.
position	R			This is the area where the position information of the personnel is kept. This is the dropdown.
AddUserID				It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.
AddDate				This is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept.

UpdateUserID	This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
UpdateDate	This is the field where the update date is kept.
version	It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.
PrevVersion	It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.

## **Entrepreneur Project Information**

field	R	U	<b>FK/PK</b>	Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК	It refers to the ID number kept for each project.
Entrepreneurld			FC (Entrepreneur Table)	It refers to the area where the entrepreneur or company identity is kept.
Name	R			It is the field where the name information of the project is kept. This is the text box area.
DescProblem	R			It is the area where the problem definition of the project is kept. This is the text field field.
SolutionProblem	R			Project is the area where problem solutions are kept. This is the text field field.
Destination	R			It refers to the goal that the project is trying to achieve. This is the text field field.
DestGroup	R			Indicates the area where the target group is kept. This is the Multi-item Collector area.
TotalAmount	R			It refers to the total area in which the size of the target market is held. This is the Decimalbox area.
Total Amount Desc	R			It refers to the area where the size of the targeted market is defined. This is the text field field.

MarketShare	R			It refers to the area where the targeted market share is held as open information proportionally. This is the text field field.
MarketShareDesc	R			It refers to the area where the market share disclosure targeted as net information is kept proportionally. This is the text field field.
phase	R			Indicates the stage of the current product. This is the text drop-down field.
InnovativeAspect	R			It refers to the area where the innovative aspect of the project is kept. This is the text field field.
MarketingMethod	R			It refers to the area where the marketing method of the project is kept. This is the text field field.
PricingPolicy	R			It refers to the area where the Pricing Policy of the project is kept. This is the text field field.
DestinationCustomer SectorId	R	FK Table)	(Sector	It refers to the area where the target customer sector of the project is held. This field is a dropdown field.
TechnologyField	R			It is the area where the technology areas of the project are kept. This is a multiple checkbox field. Technology fields such as regtech, legaltech, fintech will be selected.
Description	R			It is the description field of the project. Textarea is a field
AddUserID				It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.
AddDate				This is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept.
UpdateUserID				This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
UpdateDate				This is the field where the update date is kept.
version				It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.
PrevVersion				It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.

## Entrepreneurship Project Competitor Analysis

field	R	U	<b>FK/PK</b>	Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК	It refers to the ID number kept for each Project Competitor Analysis.
Entrepreneurld			FC (Entrepreneur Table)	It refers to the area where the entrepreneur or company identity is kept.
ProjectId			FK (Project Table)	It refers to the field where the project ID is kept in the project table to which the competitor analysis is connected.
CompetitorName				It refers to the area where the name of the project competitor is kept. This is the text box area.
pros				It refers to the area where the positive aspects of the opponent are kept. This is the text field field.
Cons				It refers to the area where the negative aspects of the opponent are kept. This is the text field field.
MarketShare				It refers to the area where the competitor has market share. This is the text box area.
AddUserID				It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.
AddDate				This is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept.
UpdateUserID				This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
UpdateDate				This is the field where the update date is kept.
version				It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.
PrevVersion				It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.

## **Entrepreneurial Financial Information**

field	R	U	<b>FK/PK</b>	Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК	It refers to the identification number kept for the financial information of each Entrepreneur.
Entrepreneurld			FC (Entrepreneur Table)	It refers to the area where the entrepreneur or company identity is kept.
year				It is the field where the year information of the financial data of the enterprise is kept. This is the dropdown.
month				It is the area where the month information of the financial data of the enterprise is kept. This is the dropdown.
IncomeExpense				It is the area where the income/expense information of the financial data of the business is kept. This is the radio button area.
amount				It is the area where the amount information of the financial data of the business is kept. This is the text field field. This is the decimal box field.
AddUserID				It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.
AddDate				This is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept.
UpdateUserID				This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
UpdateDate				This is the field where the update date is kept.
version				It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.

#### PrevVersion

It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.

#### **Investor Information**

field	R	U	<b>FK/PK</b>	Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК	It refers to the identification number held for each Investor.
InvestorName	R			Indicates the area where the investor's name is kept. This is a text field.
FoundationDate				Indicates the field where the establishment date is kept. Data is a selective field.
sector	R		FK (Sector Table)	It is the area where the sectors of interest of the investor are kept. This is the multiple checkbox field. Sectors such as software, electronics, chemistry will be selected.
TechnologyField	R			It is the area where the technology areas of interest to the investor are kept. This is a multiple checkbox field. Technology fields such as regtech, legaltech, fintech will be selected.
phase	R			The preference of the investor in seeking investment refers to the area in which the firm stage is held. This is a multiple checkbox field. stages such as establishment stage, seed stage will be selected.
InvestmentType	R			It refers to the area where the investor's investment type is kept. This is a field with multiple checkboxes. Investment type such as seed, series A, series B will be selected.
FundSize	R			It is the area where the investor's fund size is kept. The decimal box is a field.
PrevEntrepreneurId			FK ( EntrepreneurT able )	It is the area where the previous attempts of the investor are shown.
AddUserID				It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.

AddDate	This is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept.
UpdateUserID	This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
UpdateDate	This is the field where the update date is kept.
version	It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.
PrevVersion	It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.

#### **Mentor Information**

field	R	U	FK/PK		Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК		It refers to the area where the mentor's phone information is kept.
MentorName	R				It is the area where the sectors that mentors are interested in. This is the multiple checkbox field. Sectors such as software, electronics, chemistry will be selected.
E-mail					It refers to the field where the mentor's sectoral experience (in years) is kept.
					The multiple checkbox is a field that contains the mentor's area of expertise.
phone					It refers to the area where the education level of the mentor is kept.
sector			FK Table)	(Sector	Entrepreneurship refers to mentoring interests.
Experience					It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.
Profession					This is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept.

EducationLevel	This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
InterestField	This is the field where the update date is kept.
AddUserID	It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.
AddDate	It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.
UpdateUserID	It refers to the area where the mentor's phone information is kept.
UpdateDate	It is the area where the sectors that mentors are interested in. This is the multiple checkbox field. Sectors such as software, electronics, chemistry will be selected.
version	It refers to the field where the mentor's sectoral experience (in years) is kept.
PrevVersion	The multiple checkbox is a field that contains the mentor's area of expertise.
	It refers to the area where the education level of the mentor is kept.

#### Sector

field	R	U	<b>FK/PK</b>	Explanation And Restraint
ID	R	U	РК	It refers to the ID number held for each Sector.
SectorName	R	U		It is the field where the name of each Sector is kept. The text box is a field.
AddUserID				It is the area where the information of the person who added it to the system is stored.
AddDate				This is the field where the date of adding to the system is kept.
UpdateUserID				This is the area where the information of the user who made the update is kept.
UpdateDate				This is the field where the update date is kept.

version	It is the area where information about the last updated status is kept.
PrevVersion	It is the area where the information of the previous version is stored.

The contents of this publication are the sole responsibility of SwanLeuco in consortium with Evoluxer, Asturex, RRDA, StartUp Division, Inycon and can in no way taken as the view of the European Union and the Ministry of Industry and Technology of the Republic of Türkiye.